PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
7:00 PM, Wednesday, October 8, 2025
Municipal Building — Glosserman Room
308 W. San Antonio St.

AGENDA

1. Call meeting to order.

2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item.

3. Consider the Minutes of the September 24, 2025 meeting.

4. ZC-25-05. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Jiovanna Llamas for a Zoning Change
from RMD Residential Medium Density District to CMB Commercial Medium Business District on all of

Lots 30, 31, and 32 and part of lots 16, 17, 18, 27, 28, and 29, Block 2, Navarro Addition, consisting of
0.3620 and located at 312 Laredo Street.

5. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a proposed Text Amendment to Chapter 64 “Zoning” of the
Lockhart Code of Ordinances, as follows:

Amend Chapter 64 “Zoning”, Article VII “Zoning Districts and Standards” Section 64-197
"Regulations common to all or several districts" to add a new subsection (k) "Residential noise

standards."

6. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

7. Adjournment.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas, at 10:00 a.m. on the second day of October, 2025.



City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
September 24, 2025

MINUTES
Members Present: Philip Ruiz, Ron Peterson, Julia Haug, Rick Arnic, Manuel Oliva, Bradley Lingvai
Members Absent: Phil McBride
Staff Present: David Fowler, Christine Banda
Visitors/Citizens Addressing the Commission: Dale Smith

1. Callmeeting to order, Chair Ruiz called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item. None

3. Consider the Minutes of the September 10, 2025, meeting.

Commissioner Arnic moved to approve September 10, 2025, minutes. Commissioner Haug
seconded, and the motion passed by a vote of 6-0.

4. SUP-25-12. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Amanda Wilkison with Empire

Canopy, Sign and Construction on behalf of Alah Davis with 7-Eleven Stores, Inc. for a Specific

Use Permit to allow a 30-foot tall High-Profile Sign and a 40-foot tall Expressway Corridor Sign

on 3.777 acres in the Cesar Chavez Subdivision, Lot 1, zoned CHB Commercial Heavy Business

District, located at 2410 West San Antonio Street (SH 142).

David Fowler presented the staff report which included case maps and photos of the subject
property. He stated that the applicant is proposing a High-Profile sign 30 feet high on the West
San Antonio Street frontage and an Expressway Corridor sign 40 feet high on the southbound
Cesar Chavez Street frontage. An SUP application is required by the applicant for the high-profile
sign because it exceeds the allowed by right of 20 feet. The Expressway Corridor sign type is
only allowed with an approved SUP application. Both signs were proposed to be smaller than
the maximum allowed square footage, but at the full allowed height for their respective sign
types. He said that no opposition had been received.

Chair Ruiz opened the public hearing and asked for the applicant to come forward.

Dale Smith with the sign company out of Tomball Texas spoke onbehalf of the project. He stated
he was here to answer any questions and expressed that staff did a great job of explaining the
type of signs being proposed and the location of them on the subject property.

Chair Ruiz closed public hearing after seeing no one else in the audience and asked for staff’s
recommendation.

-1-
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 09-24-2025



Mr. Fowler said that staff recommends approval.

There was some discussion among the commissioners regarding the manner in which approval
of the proposed sign could set a precedent for future signs along the SH 130 corridor.

Commissioner Peterson moved to approve SUP-25-12. Commissioner Arnic seconded, and the
motion passed with a vote of 6-0.

5. Discuss the date and apenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

Mr. Fowler said their next meeting would be held on October 8" with one zoning change. A
noise ordinance text amendment will also be included. He also informed the commissicners
that City Council approved the decision to remove manufactured housing as a permitted use in
the RMD and RHD residential zoning districts.

6. Adjournment.

Commissioner Peterson moved to adjourn, and Commissioner Lingvai seconded. The motion
passed by a unanimous vote, and the meeting adjourned at 7:21 p.m.

Approved:
(date)

Christine Banda, Recording Secretary Philip Ruiz, Chair

-2
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 09-24-2025



SUBJECT PROPERTY

ZC-25-05 N
jL D ZONING BOUNDARY

RMD TO CMB
g 200 FT BUFFER

312 LAREDO ST

Scale 1" = 200'






ZC-25-05
RMD TO CMB

312 LAREDO ST

ZONING
B cHs
cLB

CmB

RLD
RMD

Scale 1" = 200’




Future Land Use

FUTURE LANDUSE &
THOROUGHFARES N Residential

Mid-Density Infill

Low Density

Mixed Use -

RMD TO CM B Regional

Mixed Use - Local
Regional Corridor

312 LAREDO ST

Local Corridor
Employment
Industrial
Unplanned Area

Thoroughfares

B Major Arterial

Minor Arterial
Collector

Urban Downtown
Local

Mixed-use Street
Local

Proposed Major
arterial

Proposed Minor
arterial

3‘1‘(}}
Q)4
g

LT

QI
-.‘_5'\0/’{53} s

Proposed
Collector

Proposed Urban
Downtown Local

Proposed Mixed-
use Street

Proposed Local

Scale 1" = 200'




CASE SUMMARY

STAFF: David Fowler, Planning Director CASE NUMBER: ZC-25-05
REPORT DATE: October 1, 2025

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION HEARING DATE: October 8, 2025

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: October 21, 2025

REQUESTED CHANGE: RMD to CMB

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Pending

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: lJiovanna Llamas

OWNER: lJiovnna Llamas and Edgar Llamas

SITE LOCATION: 312 Laredo Street

LEGAL DESCRIPT!ION: Metes and Bounds

SIZE OF PROPERTY: 0.362 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Residential

LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION: Plum Creek District/Local Corridor

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED ZONING CHANGE: The purpose of the zoning change is to allow development
of the small lot on the west side of North Colorado Street between Flores and Laredo Streets, The
proposed rezoning has been submitted because the applicant sees developing the property, possibly with
a restaurant, which would not be possible with the existing RMD zoning.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS:
Existing Use Zoning Future Land Use Plan

. . Plum Creek District/Local

North Residential RMD Corridor

Fast Residential, RMD :Dnl;:lrln Creek District/Mid-density

. Plum Creek District/Local

South Commercial CHB Corridor
Plum Creek District/Local

i CHB
Woest Commercial Corridor

TRANSITION OF ZONING DISTRICTS: The subject property is located in an area on the US 183 Corridor of
the north side that is primarily commercial development along North Colorado Street and residential as
one travels into the surrounding neighborhoods. The property has been the site of a house, which is still
currently in place, but not occupied. If the property is rezoned, any commerecial development will require
a 20-foot setback from any adjacent residential lot and will also need to meet screening requirements.



ADEQUACY OF INFRASTRUCTURE: Vehicular access is possible from both Laredo Street and North
Colorado Street/US 183. There is a 6-inch water main along Laredo St, and a 6-inch wastewater lines
along both Laredo and North Colorado Streets.

POTENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT: The development of the subject property as commercial could
potentially create impacts on neighboring residential properties, including increased traffic and possible
noise compared to the property being redeveloped as a residential property. Many of these effects can
potentially be mitigated by adherence to the city’s compatibility standards including enhanced setbacks,
fencing and screening requirements, and lighting, noise and other regulations.

CONSISTENCY WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The proposed Lockhart Comprehensive Plan shows that
retail and restaurant uses are considered appropriate in the Plum Creek District, in which the site is

located.
ALTERNATIVE CLASSIFICATIONS: None

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: Staff has received two inquiries from neighbors regarding the nature of the
zoning change request.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval



cirv oF ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION

: [512)398-3461 » FAX[512) 398-3833
: ” P.O. Box239 + Lockhart Texas 78644

308 West San Antonio Street

TEXAS
APPLICANT/OWNER -~ .~
APPLICANT NAME G\W o \JweS  aooress_ 350 old I /////taﬁ/
pav-TiME TELEPHONE 5 12) UG- ALY 2 sl N NV
E-MAIL \\6\Y\/10l§311x\{0\v\m@0wx0\§-PO\\) TX | F Y

OWNER NAME Um\g g oS+ E/’jWU”'nA%DREss (hane T°)
DAY-TIME TELEPHONE _512) T4~ (03]

E-MAIL A S - @ d\ga r A O (3 ma 1 AW

PROPERTY _

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION _ 2172 | | &W{OLO %*‘ /DC/Uf\OM/%' T YUY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION (IF PLATTED) NI, PAOCK. 2, \ D A)-37 ,PHUJ 19, 2T 2,554
SIZE DMCRE(S) LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION _CAMMINV ) 1o0si ne<S
EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) D\Ch/\/ v \pot e

PROPOSED NEW USE, IF ANy _ OO/ (Adh WY

REQUESTED CHANGE _

FROM CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION U\f\D Q,QS\A)U(\H J\J [\/\Mh WV DU\%l %f/
TO PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION QW\% (Rl N\Q()U\)M Vm% VAN
reason For Reauest Wankvd v dumaish Y\

vl Gl for aastaS. ik guding..




SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT ISNOT THE OWNER, ALETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER CERTIFYING
THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO REPRESENT THE
PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) OF PROPERTY LIEN-HOLDER(S), IF ANY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

APPLICATION FEE OF $250, PLUS $150 PER ACRE, MAXIMUM OF $10,000, PLUS ADDITIONAL $1,000
FOR PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT,

N ZoY,%0
APPLICATION FEE OF § ‘5\\’ PAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART.

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE
COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

o/

/

DATE & 91@ [5/2025

SIGNATURE

OFFICE USE ONLY

ACCEPTED BY D Foocler RECEIPT NUMBERQO 1229 7107
DATE SUBMITTED %/5‘/}0 25 CASE NUMBERZC- 25 . &2
DATE NOTICES MAILED  31-LL-WLS DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED  A-2§ - 201§

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING DATE d (PZ)L/"_ %

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION
./S‘ T
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE & Lber 2|

DECISION




SCALE: 1"=20'

NOTES:

BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARC BASED ON ACTUAL GPS OBSERVATIONS, TEXAS
STATE PLANE COORDINATES, SOUTH CENTRAL ZONE, GRID.

AND/OR SETBACK LINES (IF ANY) AS FOLLOWS: VOLUMWE 208, PAGE 628, VOLUME
267, PAGE 617, VOLUME 21T, PAGE 323, VOLUME 220, PAGE 548, OF IWE DEEQ
RECORDS OF CALDWELL COUNTY, TEXAS.

THIS SURVEY IS LIME JOEARING NG DISTANCE
ACKNOWLEDGED AND L1 [N 712626" W |44.61
1S ACCEPTED: H 659'47'00" Wi[{44.797)

NAS PROPERTY IS SUBJECT TO RESIRICTIVE COVENANTS, EASEMENTS, AGREEMENTS,

LEGEND CONT,
r FIRE KYDRANT
G = wamia v

SUBJECT TRACT
15,767 5Q. FI.
0.3620 ACRES

POINT OF
— BEGINNING

g E W5 &6

W 7838

LRAEL
BRIVE

LOT 33

REMAINDER OF
LOT 18

FLORES

(FM. §12)

STREET

A

LEGEND
= FOUND 1/2" WON ROO
n RECORD IWFORMATION
. = RECORD DIGMTY WONUMENT

PRl REQISTRATION HO.
10114700

Westar

Alamo

LAND SURVEYORS, LLC
.0, BOX 645 BOERNE, TEXAS 7!
PHCHE (210) 377-9300 FAX (210) ouese

DWG: AJS A

FLOOG ZOME INTERPRETATION; IT 15 THE
RESPONSIBILITY OF ANY INTERESTED PERSONS TQ
VERIFY THE ACCURACY COF FEMA FLOQD ZOME
DESIGRATION OF THIS PROPERTY MI'H FEMA AND
STATE AND LOCAL OFFICIALS, AND TO DETERMINE
THE EFFECT WAT SUcH nsstmmou MAY HAVE
REGARDING THE IHTENODED USE OF THE
PROPERTY, The properiy made Lia subject of
his wvay oppecra Lo bu induded In a FEMA
Flood Inmrance Rate Mop (ARM), Menlifed o

. Ponel Ho.Q120 E .

. By scaling from
ihet FIRM, It oppears thal o or a porlien of
the proparty moy ba In Ficod Zone(a}_X .
Becouns Lhis in o boundory wurvay, the urwzor
dic nat toke ony gélisns to determina Lhe Flood
Zone wtalus of the wurveyed propwty othar thal
ko Intaprel the Inforalien el oul on FEUA'S
FIRd. cu described obow. THIS SURVEYDR (OFS
HOT CERTIFY THE ACCURACT OF THIS
HTERPRETATION OF THE FLOOD ZOMES, which
may nat agres wilh the nlepestalions of FEMA
or State or Jotd officlals, ond which moy Rel
agree with the broct's ostudl sondilons More
Wlormatian conceming FEMA's Spectd Flood
Hozord Arsow ond Zonea may be found ot
httpa: £ /muc.tuma.gav/portal.

Property Address:
J12 LAREDG STREET
Property Description:

Bring 03620 e of fand, sore or fess. being alf of Lots 30, 31 and 32 and pant
of Lots 16,17, 18,27, 28aud 29, Block 2, Navaro Addition, according to the plat
necorded in Volink 206, Page 601, Becd Records. Cakdwelt County. Fexas, and
being hat same property: dheseribed i Geneeal Waiminty Deed ecorded in Docunent
No. 2021067080, Official Public Records. Cafdiwell Covnty. Texas, said 6.3524
seres being anom partizularly: described by icres and bonnds sifached herelo,

Chvners
EDGAR LLAMAS AND JOVANNA LLAMAS

(l._DERﬂiCK L, MAYFIELD, Reglalarad
Profasslontl Land Surveyor, Stals of Texoe,
cortify lhat the above plet represents on
actud survey mods on the ground undar my
nup-rvhim, and 1hat my profassional opinion

that thare ore no Jiscrapancias, conflicls,
nhortaqu In aréa of boundary lings, or ony
encroachment or overopplag of
improvements, sxcept 99 may appear hecein,
to |h| beat of my knowledge ond ballsl.

Lot 2 Jpfeld

A

DERRICK L. MATHELD
Regislered Professional Land Surveyor

o.F, NO.J25-2918-1 Toos na. [ 132670

| TITLE COMPANY:  CORRIDOR NTLE

A
| DaYe: 8/25/2025

v
A Texos Reglsirotion No. 6456

vy




CiTY OF

(512) 398-3461 » FAX (512) 398-5103
OC ar P.0. Box 239 » Lockhart, Texas 78644

TEXAS 308 West San Antonio Street

TO: Planning and Zoning Commission

FROM: David Fowler, AICP, Planning Director
SUBJECT: Proposed Noise Ordinance revisions
DATE: October 1, 2025

A public hearing is scheduled at the October 8th meeting to discuss possible revisions to Section 64-197
relating to allowed noise levels in residential areas in the City. This text amendment is an additional work
item that had remined unfinished after the overhaul of noise standards which occurred in 2024. The 2024
amendment revised the standards for noise levels produced by various nonresidential uses, including
noise received in commercial areas, but did not address the noise levels produced by residential uses. This
was due to Chapter 64, Zoning, of the City Code of Ordinances having its primary noise regulations in
Section 64-198, “Performance Standards for Commercial and tndustrial Districts,” which would not allow
for inclusion of noise produced by residential districts in that section. To solve this issue, planning staff
recommends that a freestanding residential noise ordinance section be added to section 64-197,
“Regulations common to all or several districts”

A document which planning staff had previously prepared comparing Lockhart to other peer cities
accompanies this memo, as well as an overview of noise ordinances created by a professional
organization. Both documents show that while Lockhart’s noise standards are lower than some other
cities in the studies, they are not so low as to stand out as an outlier among other cities. The
recommendation is that allowed noise levels originating within residential areas mirror the noise levels
allowed to be heard within residential areas from commercial uses outside the residential areas.

An additional revision will be required to Section 18-26 “Unreasonable noise Prohibited” to reference the
enumeration of allowable noise levels in Chapter 64. The Commission’s recommendation will be heard at
the October 21% City Council meeting.



Suggested residential noise ordinance language

Sec. 64-197. - Regulations common to all or several districts

(k) Residential noise standards

1} Noise originating from properties in residential zoning districts, including
RLD, RMD, RHD idential areas within Planned lopment
Districts, shall be limited t ecibels between 10:00 PM and 7:00 AM
and 63 decibels hetween 7:00 AM and 10:00 PM, as measured from other
residentially-zoned properties.

Sec. 18-26. - Unreasonable noise prohibited.

The creation of any unreasonable loud, disturbing and unnecessary noises in the city is
hereby prohibited. Noises of such character, intensity and duration as are reasonably
calculated to be detrimental to the life or health of any ordinary reasonable person are
hereby prohibited. The permitted noise levels for residential and nonresidential properties
are listed in Sections 64-197 {k).and 64.198 (c} (3).




Notes on City Noise Regulations

May 28, 2024

Summary

How do peer cities regulate noise for special or one-time events? Key factors for
consideration include:

e Whether the standard noise regulations apply,

¢ What exceptions exist,

e What the standard and/or special noise levels are, and

e Are special permits required for noise at events not otherwise qualifying as Special
Events.

The foltowing is an overview of these factors from different cities.

Most cities have published a guidebook or other literature detailing what types of events
require permits and the complete processes by which permits can be requested from all
relevant departments.

Georgetown
Code of Ordinances Chapter 8.16 — Noise Control
Day/Night Maximums:

¢ 63/56 residential areas
s 70/63 commercial areas
¢ 72/85industrial areas

s 72/65 other areas

Temporary permits to exceed noise levels are allowed for Special Events and for outdoor
music venues. Qutdoor music venue permits may be granted for up to a year in duration
and do not transfer between ownership/tenancies. In all other cases, permits may not be
issued for a period greater than 24 hours and more frequently than every 30 days.

Permit fees are $50 and must be submitted at least 20 days before the event.
Temporary permits may be issued if:

1. Noise levels occurring during the period of the variance will not constitute a danger
to public health;



2. Compliance with this Chapter would impose an unreasonable hardship on the

applicant or the pubtic without greater benefits to the public; and

3. The applicant has fully complied with the application procedures.

Considerations for evaluating the permit application:

1.

L

The character and degree of injury to, or interference with, the health and welfare or
the reasonable use of property that is caused or threatened to be caused;

The value to the community of the activity for which the variance is sought;

The ability of the applicant to apply the best practical noise control measures; and
Proximity to residences at which reasonable persons would be disturbed by the
noise.

Additional notes:

1.

No permit shall be issued for the operation of sound equipment at nighttime from a
motor vehicle or for a location within 100 feet of a residential or noise-sensitive
area.

No permit shall be issued if the applicant has been convicted of more than two
violations of a regulation under this Chapter or there have been more than two
convictions for violations of this Chapter at the location for which the permitis
sought in the six months prior to the date on which the application is submitted.
Revocation of permit. The permit may be revoked by the director if the terms of the
permit are violated; if it is learned that there were material misrepresentations made
inthe permit application; or if there is a material change in any of the circumstances
relied upon by the Director in granting the permit.

San Marcos

The City uses a hybrid form-based code, so specific noise regulations based on use are
limited. Special Event Facility (use} does not have additional noise requirements.

Development Code Section 7.4.2.1 Noise

No activity in excess of 85 decibels between 10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., or in excess of 75
decibels between 10:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m.

Code of Ordinances Chapter 19 — Special Events

Sound may be included as part of the “Any other information that the City deems necessary
to consider the permit request including additional permits associated with the event
(Health, Temporary structures/tents, etc.).” which can be requested by the City in the
Special Events Permit application.



Round Rock
Code of Ordinance Chapter 14 - Environment, Article Vill — Noise
Day/Night Maximums:

s 55/50 residential areas
¢ 80/75 commercial and industrial areas

Regulations pertaining to outdoor music venues:

1. No sound can be created that can be heard more than 200 feet away at a level
exceeding the zoning district’s maximum noise level.
2. Foroutdoor live music venues that meet the following requirements:
a. Are located within 1,000 feet of IH-35 or SH-45; and
b. The front of the stage is a minimum of 2,500 feetfrom any residential use or
hotel/motel/lodging uses as of the submittal date of the first city required
development application.
3. Said outdoor live music venues are exempt from number 1 above during the hours
set forth below:
a. From noon to 6:00 p.m. on weekdays for sound check(s);
b. From6:00 p.m. to midnight on weekdays for sound check(s) and/or live
performances;
c. From noon to midnight on Sunday for sound checks and/or live
performances; and
d. From 10:00 a.m. to midnight on Saturday and federal holidays for sound
checks and/or live performances.
4. Except for the exemption set forth above, said outdoor live music venues are subject
to the other requirements of this article VIll, specifically including the requirements
of Tables | and Il of subsection 14-212(b).

Permits for louder music may be acquired in the MU-1 Mixed use zone to allow sound up to
80 decibels from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sunday-Thursday and 60 decibels from 10:00
a.m. to 12:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday. Permits are $50, are valid for one year, and may be
revoked for three violations in one year.

Temporary noise exemption permits can be requested at leastten days in advance of the
event for which the permit is required. The Chief of Police review the request and
determines the maximum noise level and permit duration (up to 2 days).



Buda

The City uses a hybrid form-based code, so specific noise regulations based on use are
limited.

Unified Development Code 14.04.003 Restrictions on decibel levels
Day/Night Maximums:

e B63/56 residential areas
s 70/63 commercial areas
e 80/65 industrial areas

e 80/65 other areas

A temporary permit may be requested for events or outdoor music venues, Limits similar to
Georgetown’s allowing no permit for sound on motor vehicles, for repeat violators, or for
applicants who the city manager does not believe can control the sound level competently
exist. Council will hear the permit requests for outdcor music venues.

Permits can grant an additional 10 decibets maximum unless the Council or ¢city manager
approve otherwise. Events may be granted a permit for their duration, but outdoor music
venues can only be granted permits for a maximum of 30 days. Permits may be revoked for
failure to comply with the terms of the permit or if any material misrepresentations were
made on the application.

Taylor

The City uses a hybrid form-based code, so specific noise regulations based on use are
limited.

Taytor Made Land Development Ordinance 5.9.4.2 NOISE.

s Sites shall be laid out and uses shall be operated to prevent noise from becoming a
nuisance to adjacent properties.

Code of Ordinances Chapter 19 — Offenses - Miscellaneous Section 19-4 Noise generally

+ No loudspeaker shall be operated between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. Monday-
Saturday, with hours extended from 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Sundays.

¢ The city manager or his designee or the city council shall be entitled to license
celebratory, religious, civic or charitable events, celebrations or activities occurring
during hours or on dates using, employing or causing noise otherwise prohibited by
this section when such events, celebrations or activities are deemed in the best
interest and of a benefit to the citizens of the city.



Hutto

The City uses a hybrid form-based code, so specific noise regulations based on use are
limited.

Code of Ordinances Article 14.03 Noise
Day/Night Maximums:
¢ 85/70in all areas, generally.

Special exception permits can be filed on a hardship basis with the Police Department
through the City Manager’s office.

Austin
Code of Ordinances Title 9 Prohibited Activities, Chapter 9-2 Noise and Amplified Sound

¢ Standard sound regulation hours are 10:30 p.m. to 7:00a.m., where no sound from
instruments or music can be made which is audible to adjacent businesses or
residences.

¢ Sound equipment at a business cannot exceed 85 decibels between 10:00 a.m. and
2:00 a.m., and cannot produce sound audible at the property line from 2:00 a.m. to
10:00 a.m.

¢ Soundis limited to 75 decibels in residential areas from 10:00 p.m. and 10:00 a.m.

The use of sound equipment which is audible to the public requires a permit. Approvable
hours for the permit vary based on the zoning of the requesting property and its neighbors.

QOutdoor music permits are categorized separately. 85 decibels is the maximum allowed
sound level in most areas, except where modified by zoning district-specific regulations.
Restaurants are limited to 70 decibels maximum. Temporary permits are available for up to
3 days at a time. Permanent permits are granted for up to one year. Permits are reviewed
and negotiated by the Music Office and are subject to a Good Neighbor Policy including
standards for sound-mitigating design features, prescribed decibe! levels and hours of
operation, availability and use of decibel meters on site, contact information and hours of
availability for an individual responsible for sound, location fordisplay of permit, and any
other elements required by the accountable official.

Sound regulations for events in City parks are subject to similar permitting processes.
Generally, amplified sound is allowed at a maximum of 85 decibels between the hours of
10:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. Sound regulations for Private Parking Patios, similar to food
truck parks or vending areas, limit sound to 70 decibels before 10:00 p.m.

5



Sound permits for excessive sound are available under the same permit as for Sound
Trucks in Chapter 13 Section 13-243. The terms appear to be entirely determined at the
time of application.

Lockhart

Lockhart uses a nuisance standard, contained in chapter 18-27 of the Code of Ordinances,
for noise originating on residential properties.

The following standards apply to commercial and industrial properties abutting residential
properties.

¢ 55/50 commercial/industrial areas abutting residential areas
e 65/65 commercial/industrial areas abutting commercial areas
s 70/70 commercial/industrial areas abutting industrial areas

Additionally, “When noise contains strong pure tone components or is impulsive (when
meter changes at ten decibels or more per second), the sound pressure level limit shall be
five decibels less than the limits listed above, as measured at the applicable property line”
(Section 64-198(c)(3)(b).

Recommendation

Lockhart’s noise regulations for commercial and industrial properties are generally more
restrictive than the regulations of comparable cities. The city does not have strong
standards for noise originating from residential properties, or standards that apply by-
district.

Noise-specific information could be added to the Specific Use Permit and Special Event
Permit application forms to call attention to impacts and provide the opportunity for staff to
assess and/or create conditions to permitting.

The City should develop noise standards applicable by-districtin accordance with similar
practices in other cities. Austin’s City Code allows amplified sound on residential property
from 10 a.m. to 10 p.m. at a maximum of 75 decibels. Amplified sound may not be audible
beyond the property line from 10 p.m. to 10 a.m. Lowering this standard and applyingitto

noise in general on residential properties would be a good step.



